
 

Plan Commission Agenda 
February 28, 2019 

 

 
AGENDA   
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING  
Thursday, February 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main Street 
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
         
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of Minutes for the Plan Commission Meeting of January 3, 
 2019  

 
3. Presentation of County Bike Way & Train Network Plan – Kelly 

Valentino 
 

4. Planned Unit Development – Final Plat - Bielinski Homes Inc. – Laurel 
Springs Addition #1 - Phasing 

 
5. Planned Unit Development Amendment - Tenant Buildings Storage 

Units - JJ Merkel 
 

6. Conditional Use Permit – Three Dogs - Renee Kaiser 
 

7. Planned Unit Development - Final Plat - Cobblestone Builders 
 

8. Citizens to Address the Plan Commission 
 

9. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
Persons with disabilities requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should 
contact the Village Hall at least one (1) business day prior to the meeting. 

 
It is possible that members of the Village Board may attend the above meeting. No action will be taken 
by any governmental body at this meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to in 
this meeting notice. This notice is given so that members of the Village Board may attend the meeting 
without violating the open meeting law. 



 

Plan Commission Meeting – January 3, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 

DRAFT MINUTES      
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Thursday, January 3, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main Street 
Jackson, WI  53037 
         
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 Pres. Schwab called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Members present: Keith Berben, Pete Habel, Tr. Kruepke and Jon Weil. 
 Members excused: Tr. Emmrich and Steve Schoen 
 Others present:  Tr. Kurtz 
 Staff present: John Walther and Jilline Dobratz. 
   
2. Approval of the Plan Commission minutes of November 29, 2018 

Motion by Peter Habel, second by Keith Berben to approve the Plan Commission 
minutes of November 29, 2018. 
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

3. Concept Plan – JYM Investments LLC – Storage Units 
 Joe Merkel was present and had received staff comments.  Joe questioned the staff 

comments regarding wetland concerns.  He stated this was supposed to be a 
condominium development.  The building pads have 5 to 8 feet of fill, one will end 
up with 10 to 12 feet of fill.  When the development and road went in, a hole was 
created so the water has no place to go, it doesn’t drain.  Peter Habel stated the 
staff comments indicate potential wetland impact.  The Village wouldn’t make the 
determination, that would have to come from the DNR.  Jon Weil commented that 
the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC) does wetland 
delineations, an area doesn’t have to be under water to be a wetland.   
Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Peter Habel to recommend the Village Board 
approve the Concept Plan for JYM Investments LLC – Storage Units per staff 
comments. 
John Walther stated the Washington County GIS site shows this area as not in any 
sensitive determination, although new studies could place the area in that category.  
It would be Mr. Merkel’s responsibility to have the County look at that area.  The 
DNR and the County would have to sign off on it.  Overall it would improve the look 
of the area. 
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
4. Certified Survey Map – Bill Holz 

Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Jon Weil to recommend to the Village Board the 
approval of the Certified Survey Map – Bill Holz per staff comments. 
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
5. Citizens to Address the Plan Commission 
 None 
  



 

Plan Commission Meeting – January 3, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

 

6. Adjourn 
  Motion by Peter Habel, second by Pres. Schwab to adjourn. 

Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Meeting adjourned at 7:13 p.m. 
 

 Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Jilline Dobratz, CMC/WCMC 
Village Clerk/Treasurer  

















Department of Administration

Certified __________________, 20_____

Wis Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
There are no objections to this plat with respect to 

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS
WETLANDS



Department of Administration

Certified __________________, 20_____

Wis Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
There are no objections to this plat with respect to 

DESIGN
L AND SURVEYI NG

CIV INGIL ENG I NEE R

WETLANDS

WETLANDS



DESIGN
L AND SURVEYI NG

CIV INGIL ENG I NEE R

Department of Administration

Certified __________________, 20_____

Wis Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
There are no objections to this plat with respect to 



GENERAL NOTES

100 101 102
103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112113

114
115

116
117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 127 128
129

130

131

132133134
135

136137
138

139
140 141 142

143
144

145

O.L. 5

O.L. 1O.L. 4

O.L. 3 O.L. 2

SHEET INDEX



INDICATES
PHASE
LIMITS



INDICATES
PHASE
LIMITS





















600ft4002000
DISCLAIMER: This map is not guaranteed to be

accurate, correct, current, or complete and
conclusions drawn are the responsibility of the

user.





























































Cobblestone Trails

Cobblestone
Meadows

22 Single Family
Homesites

GlenBrooke Drive











1

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made this   day of   , 20 , and between NFI 
Jackson LLC, (the “Developer”), and the Village of Jackson, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Wisconsin, located in Washington County, (the “Village”).

WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner of 8.59 acres which has been zoned and approved for 
single-family development, with the densities described below, in the Village of Jackson, Washington 
County, Wisconsin, as follows: 

COBBLESTONE MEADOWS
See EXHIBIT “A” Attached Hereto

for legal description

WHEREAS, the Village Board has approved the plan for the development of the property on 
the condition that the Developer enter into an Agreement with the Village relative to the manner and 
method by which the plan will be developed in accordance with Chapters 38, 44, and 48 of the 
Municipal Code; 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the Developer shall be responsible for installing the public 
improvements on the site, as outlined below, but that all remaining improvements, including structures, 
private roadways, and private landscaping, shall become the responsibility of the builder(s) who is 
developing the real property that is the subject of this Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the approval by the Village of the Plan prior to the 
completion and installation of all required improvements, it is agreed as follows:

SECTION I. IMPROVEMENTS

A. Phasing The public improvements within the project shall be completed in one phase in 
accordance with the plan attached hereto (see EXHIBIT “B”).

B. Streets

1. Developer shall complete the construction of all streets, except the final course of 
asphalt, including underground utilities prior to issuance of building permits within the site, 
other than the building permits for the model homes referred to in Section IV.C.2. 

2. The second course of asphalt shall be installed no later than 12 months following the 
installation of the first course of asphalt, or as directed by the Village Engineer.

3. All streets are private streets within the development.  The Developer will provide an 
easement of least twenty feet in width for sanitary sewer and water systems. 



2

C. Sanitary Sewer

1. Developer shall furnish, construct, and install sanitary sewer system in accordance with 
the design plans prepared by Jahnke and Jahnke Associates, Inc. and as approved by the 
Village Engineer.

2. All sanitary sewer main and lateral construction shall be done in accordance with 
standard specifications of the Village and shall be completed prior to the application of the first 
lift of asphalt street paving.

3. The Developer or subsequent Builders are responsible for connecting sanitary sewer 
laterals to the sanitary sewer system.

4. Sanitary sewer connection fees shall be determined to occur at the time each building 
permit is issued and shall be paid according to the connection fee in effect at the time each 
building permit is issued, by the builder requesting each permit. 

D. Water Distribution

1. The Developer shall furnish, construct and install water mains in accordance with the 
design plans prepared by Jahnke and Jahnke Associates, Inc. and as approved by the Village. If 
a water main in excess of 12 inches is required, the Village is responsible for the cost of over 
sizing.

2. All water main and service lateral construction by Developer shall be done in 
accordance with standard specifications of the Village and shall be completed prior to the 
application of the first lift of asphalt street paving. 

3. The Developer or subsequent Builders are responsible for connecting water service 
laterals to the water system.

4. Water connection charges shall be determined at the time each building permit is issued 
and shall be paid by the builder requesting the connection according to the connection/impact 
fee in effect at the time each building permit issued.

E. Storm Sewer

1. The Developer shall furnish, construct and install surface/storm water system in 
accordance with the design plans prepared by Jahnke and Jahnke Associates, Inc. and as 
approved by the Village Engineer. 

2. All storm water system construction shall be done in accordance with Village approval 
and shall be completed prior to the application of the first lift of asphalt street paving.

3. The storm sewer system is a private system, and will not be part of the Village’s public 
system.



3

F. Bike/ Pedestrian Path

There are no public paths proposed for the development. 

G. Sidewalks   

There are no public sidewalks proposed for the development. 

H. Erosion Control Plan

The Developer shall comply with the erosion control plan prepared by Jahnke and Jahnke 
Associates, Inc., which conforms to the provisions of the Village of Jackson Municipal Code. 

I. Grading Plan

The site shall be graded in conformity with the Developer’s Grading Plan as approved by the 
Village Engineer. Following completion of all public improvements, Developer shall provide 
the Village with an as-built grading plan.

J. Landscaping

The Developer shall landscape in accordance with the approved site Plan. All other landscaping 
shall be installed by each builder on private property. 

K. Completion Date

All public improvements on the site for which a completion date is not otherwise specified, 
other than the final lift of asphalt paving, shall be completed prior to the issuance of building 
permits, other than for the model homes referred to in Section IV.C.2., as per Village Code.

L. Installation of Improvements

Following the completion date set forth in the preceding paragraph, the Village may replace, 
repair or construct, or arrange for the replacement, repair or construction, of any public 
improvements not installed by the Developer in accordance with this Agreement and the 
Village’s standard specifications.  Prior to proceeding with such replacement, repair or 
construction, the Village shall give the Developer notice of any deficiency in the Developer’s 
performance and allow not less than 30 days for the Developer to correct such deficiency. The 
Developer shall reimburse the Village for its costs in connection with such replacement, repair 
or construction. 

M. Signs

Developer may apply for and place its temporary promotional signs on the Developer’s 
property, if approved by the Village, until the models are sold. 



4

N. Street Lamps

In lieu of street lamps; coach lamp light posts and fixtures are to be installed, owned, and 
maintained in the front yard of each house by each individual property owner, with lamp 
construction requirements to be recorded through deed and restrictive covenants.

SECTION II. APPROVAL AND TRANSFER OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

A. Inspection

All utility construction shall be inspected and tested by the Village Engineer or a consultant 
retained by the Village to assure that it complies with all construction and improvement 
requirements of the Village.  Before any sureties are released to the Developer, the Village 
Engineer shall report the satisfactory completion and recommend acceptance of all public 
improvements to the Board of Public Works and Village Board.  The Village Engineer shall 
review any written requests from the Developer and respond in writing within thirty days of 
receiving said letter indicating acceptance or reasons for denial of acceptance of said public 
improvements. The Developer shall pay the actual cost of such inspections as required by 
Section 38.14(f) of the Village of Jackson Municipal Code (see EXHIBIT “C”).

B. As-Builts

After completion of all public improvements within the site, and prior to final acceptance of 
said improvements by the Village, the Developer shall prepare and present as-built documents 
in accordance with Section 38-209 of the Village of Jackson Municipal Code. As-builts shall be 
submitted on electronic media compatible with the Village’s CAD system software, in addition 
to providing a reproducible medium to the Village Engineer. 

C. Dedication

Subject to all of the other provisions of this Agreement and the exhibits hereto attached, the 
Developer shall, upon completion of all of the above described public improvements, 
unconditionally, and without charge to the Village, grant, convey and fully dedicate the same to 
the Village, its successors and assigns forever, free and clear of all encumbrances whatsoever; 
together with (without limitation because of enumeration) all land, structures, mains, conduits, 
pipes, lines, plant machinery, equipment, and appurtenances which may in any way be a part of 
or pertain to such improvements, together with any and all necessary easements for access 
thereto.

D. Acceptance

Following completion and dedication of the improvements within a phase and upon written 
request by the Developer, the Village shall report inspection and completion of the 
improvements to the next scheduled meetings of the Board of Public Works and Village Board. 
The Village shall thereupon accept such improvements in accordance with Section 38-184 of
the Village of Jackson Municipal Code. The Village shall thereafter have the right to connect or 
integrate other utility facilities with the facilities provided hereunder without payment or award 
to, or consent required of, the Developer. The Village Clerk shall provide the Developer with a 



5

certified copy of the Village Board Resolutions accepting improvements hereunder which the 
developer may record to evidence compliance with this Agreement. 

E. Street Grades

Prior to construction, the Village shall establish the grade of all streets in accordance with 
Section 36-26 of the Village of Jackson Municipal Code, and as approved by the Village 
Engineer. 

F. Improvement Guarantee

The Developer agrees to guarantee all improvements installed by it against defects in materials 
or workmanship which appear within a period of one year from the date of acceptance by the 
Village as herein provided and shall pay for any damages resulting therefrom to Village 
property. 

G. Title Evidence

Prior to recording of the Final Plat, the Developer shall provide the Village with title evidence 
acceptable to the Village showing that upon recording, the Village shall have good, 
indefeasible title to all interests in land dedicated or conveyed to the Village by the Plat, this 
Agreement or other instruments required by this Agreement. 

H. As-Built Alterations or Repairs

If the public improvements as installed by the Developer, even if in accordance with the 
approved plans, do not function or perform properly in the field as determined by the Village 
Engineer within the one-year guarantee period, the Developer shall at its expense make such 
repairs or alterations as required by Village Engineer. If the Developer fails to make such 
alterations or repairs as reported during the one-year guarantee period, then the Village will 
make the same and charge the Developer and/or draw on the Developer’s letter of credit.

SECTION III. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

A. Letter of Credit

Prior to the commencement of any public improvements, the Developer shall provide to the 
Village a formal letter of credit issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes which shall assure the 
faithful performance of the Developer’s obligations under this Agreement as itemized in 
EXHIBIT D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The amount of the letter of 
credit shall be 115% of the amount of the estimated total of the contracts for the installation of 
public improvements as approved by the Village Engineer. The amount of the letter of credit 
may be reduced from time to time by the Village Administrator in amounts equal to the value 
of improvements, which have been installed, completed, and accepted by the Village. The letter 
of credit shall be payable to the Village and shall be conditioned upon and guarantee to the 
Village the performance by the Developer of its obligations under this Agreement.  The letter 
of credit shall be approved as to form by the Village Attorney. 



6

B. Preservation of Assessment Rights

In the event of a default by Developer under this agreement, and in addition to other remedies 
provided to the Village by this Agreement, the Village shall have the right without notice or 
hearing, to impose special assessments for any amount to which the Village is entitled by virtue 
of this Agreement.  This provision constitutes the Developer’s consent to the installation by the 
Village of all public improvements required by this Agreement and constitutes the Developer’s 
waiver of notice and consent to all special assessment proceedings as described in Sec. 
66.0701, Wis. Stats.  In addition, if any of the common areas within the site are not maintained 
by the homeowner’s association created by the Developer in a manner acceptable to the 
Village, the Village shall have the authority to provide the maintenance and charge the 
proportionate costs thereof against each unit within the Development as a special assessment or 
special charge pursuant to Section 66.0701 Wis. Stats.  

C. Remedies Not Exclusive

The remedies provided in this section are not exclusive. The Village may use any other 
remedies available to it under the Agreement or in law or equity in addition to, or in lieu of, the 
remedies provided above. 

SECTION IV. PERMITS AND FEES

A. Park Fees

The Developer agrees the park impact fees shall be paid according to the connection/impact fee 
in effect at the time each building permit is issued and shall be paid at the time of building 
permit issuance, by the builder making the permit application.

B. Police and Fire Impact Fees

The Developer agrees the Police and Fire impact fees shall be paid according to the impact fee 
in effect at the time each building permit is issued and shall be paid at the time of building 
permit issuance, by the builder making the permit application.

C. Building Permits

1. The Development is zoned PUD-Residential with the minimum requirements of the 
R-5 zoning. Homes will have the following minimum setback requirements:

Road Setback = 25’ on local streets
Rear Yard = 25’ 
Side Yard = 8’

2. Building permits within the site, other than building permits for model homes 
pursuant to subsection 2 below, will not be issued by the Village for residential 
construction until the Developer has installed and the Village has accepted all 
improvements within the site except the final course of asphalt.



7

3. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Builders are 
authorized to receive up to three early issue building permits on each Builder’s site to 
facilitate model home construction.  All such homes shall be initially planned for model 
home use.  The model homes may not be occupied for residential living purposes until 
the Developer has installed and the Village has accepted all public improvements within 
the site, except the final course of asphalt.  The model homes may continue as model 
homes until sold. 

C. Developer’s Responsibility for Work

The Work within the site shall be under the charge and care of the Builder and Developer until 
the public improvements serving the site have been accepted by the Village.

D. Insurance Requirements

General: The Developer shall obtain insurance acceptable to the Village as required under this 
section. The Developer shall maintain all required insurance under this section until 
improvements have been accepted, and during any subsequent period in which the Developer 
does work under this Agreement pursuant to the improvement guarantee or otherwise. 

Certificates of Insurance: Where the Village does not specify other limits for liability 
insurance, the minimum limits of liability shall be as follows:

Employer’s Liability (if applicable)    $100,000.00 per occurrence 

 Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability, Bodily Injury $1,500,000.00 per accident 
and Property Damage combined (if applicable)

Comprehensive General Liability
  Bodily Injury      $1,500,000.00 per accident 
  Property Damage Combined    $1,000,000.00 aggregate 

The Developer may furnish coverage for bodily injury and property damage for Comprehensive 
Motor Vehicle Liability and Comprehensive General Liability through the use of primary 
liability policies or in a combination with an umbrella excess third party liability.

SECTION V. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS and PUBLIC RESPONSIBILITY

A. Laws To Be Observed

The Developer shall at all times observe and comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, and ordinances which are in effect or which may be placed in effect which may 
affect the conduct of the work to be accomplished under this Agreement (the “Work”). The 
Developer shall indemnify and save harmless, the Village and all its agents, officers and 
employees, against any claims or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such 
law, ordinance, regulation or order, whether by himself or his agents, employees or contractors. 
The Developer shall procure all permits and licenses and pay all charges and fees and give all 



8

notices necessary and incident to the lawful prosecution of the work to be completed under this 
Agreement.

B. Public Protection and Safety

The Developer shall be responsible for all damage, bodily injury, or death arising out of the 
Work whether from maintaining an “attractive nuisance” or otherwise. Where apparent or 
potential hazards occur incident to his conduct of the Work, the Developer shall provide other 
reasonable safeguards.

Owner’s Protective Liability (Independent Contractor Insurance):

The liability limits shall be the same as those of the Comprehensive General Liability 
Policy. 

Insurance required under this Agreement shall be carried with an insurer authorized to 
do business in Wisconsin by the Wisconsin State Insurance Department. The Village 
reserves the right to disapprove any insurance company. 

E. Indemnification

The Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village, its officers, agents and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney’s fees 
arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided that any such claim, 
damage loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to 
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself) including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and (b) is caused in whole or in part, by any negligent  act or omission of 
the Developer, his Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it 
is caused in party by a party indemnified hereunder; provided, however, that such 
indemnification shall not extend to directions by the Village of its employees to perform acts if 
the acts are performed in accordance with such direction. A claim for indemnification under 
this section shall be conditioned upon the Village giving to the Developer, within five business 
days of receiving the same, written notice of any claim made against the Village which 
indemnification is sought, and if requested to do so by the Developer’s insurance carrier, the 
Village shall tender the defense of such claim to the Developer’s insurance carrier. In any and 
all claims against the Village its officers, agents and employees, by any employee of the 
Developer, his Contractor, and Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of 
them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under 
this section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Developer, the Contractor or any Subcontractor 
under Workers’ Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefits acts.

F. Personal Liability of Public Officials

In carrying out any of the provisions of this Agreement or in exercising any power or authority 
granted to them thereby, there shall be no personal liability of the Village officers, agents or 
employees, it being understood and agreed that in such matters they act as agents and 
representatives of the Village.



9

SECTION VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Survey Monuments

The Developer has certified that all survey or other monuments required by statute or ordinance 
will be properly placed and installed.  Any monuments disturbed during construction of 
improvements shall be restored by Developer.

B. Zoning

The Village does not guarantee or warrant that the lands subject to this Agreement will not at 
some later date be rezoned, nor does the Village agree to rezone the lands into a different 
zoning district. It is further understood that any rezoning that may take place shall not void this 
Agreement.

C. Indemnification for Environmental Contamination

The Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Village and its officers, employees, and 
agents harmless from any claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, or loss (including 
reasonable fees for attorneys, consultant, and experts) that arise as a result of the presence or 
suspected presence in or on the real property dedicated or conveyed to the Village by, under, 
pursuant to, or in connection with the Plat or this agreement (including, but not limited to, 
street right of way and park land) of any toxic or hazardous substances arising from any activity 
occurring prior to the acceptance of all improvements.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the indemnification by the Developer shall include costs incurred in connection with 
any site investigation or any remedial, removal, or restoration work required by any local, state, 
or federal agencies because of the presence or suspected presence of toxic or hazardous 
substances on or under the real property, whether in the soil, groundwater, air, or any other 
receptor.

The Village agrees that it will immediately notify the Developer of the discovery of any 
contamination or of any facts or circumstances that reasonably indicate that such contamination 
may exist in or on the real property.  The Village also agrees that following notification to the 
Developer that contamination may exist, the Village shall make all reasonable accommodations 
to allow the Developer to examine the real property and conduct such clean-up operations as 
may be required by appropriate local, state, or federal agencies to comply with applicable laws.

D. Easements

All water, sanitary sewer, storm water drainage and utility easements dedicated to the Village 
on the plat grant the Village the right to construct, install, maintain, inspect, repair and replace 
the designated improvements in, on, over, or under the easement or permit others to do so.  No 
use of the property shall be made which interferes with the Village rights.  The Village’s only 
obligation to restore the property after any use by the Village shall be to grade the soil, replace 
topsoil and plant grass seed. 



10

E. Trash Container

A standard Village trash container and recycling bin will be provided by the Village at the time 
of the Certificate of Occupancy is issued for each residential unit contracted for trash and 
recycling pickup. 

F. Pond and Common Areas

The detention pond easement area of Certified Survey Map Number 5727, recorded in Volume 
41 of records at page 329, as approved by the Village for this development, and the 
responsibility for the maintenance of the entrance median within the development shall be 
transferred to a homeowner’s association created by Developer. The Developer shall maintain 
the detention pond and the common areas until they are transferred to the homeowner’s 
association. Upon transfer to the homeowner’s association, the homeowner’s association shall 
be responsible for maintaining the pond and the common areas. The Village shall be a party 
entitled to enforce the obligations of all members of the homeowner’s association. 

G. Exhibits

“A” Legal Description of Property 
“B” Site Plan / Phasing Plan
“C” Section 38-14 of Municipal Code 
“D” Itemization of Letter of Credit

SECTION VII. APPROVAL

 The Village shall, contemporaneously, with the approval of this Agreement, approve the Plat and cause 
the same to be signed and endorsed by the appropriate officers. The Developer shall thereupon provide 
the Village with a conformed mylar copy of the Plat in accordance with Section 38-85 of the Village of 
Jackson Municipal Code. 

SECTION VIII. AMENDMENTS

The Village and the Developer may, by mutual consent, amend this Developer’s Agreement.

SECTION IX. BINDING EFFECT

The Developer warrants that it is the owner of all property described in Exhibit A and has full right and 
authority to make this Agreement. This Agreement and the grants, consents, and waivers contained 
herein shall run with the land and be binding upon the Developer and its successors and assigns 
including all individual lot owners within the plat.



11

NFI JACKSON, LLC

Date: ________________________  By: ________________________________ 
        Dirk Wildt, Member

Subscribed and sworn to before me  

on:      , 20 

       
Notary Public – State of Wisconsin (print name) 

         
   Notary signature

My commission expires:    

VILLAGE OF JACKSON

Date:       By:      
        President, Michael E. Schwab

Date:        By:      
        John M. Walther, Administrator 

Subscribed and sworn to before me  

on:      , 20 

       
Notary Public – State of Wisconsin (print name) 

         
   Notary signature

My commission expires:    

This document was drafted by:
Brian W. Kober, P.E., Village Engineer 
Village of Jackson

Please return recorded document to:
Village of Jackson
N168 W20733 Main St 
PO Box 637 
Jackson, WI 53037 



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – February 28, 2019 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
1. Planned Unit Development – Final Plat – Bielinski Homes Inc. – Laurel Springs 

Addition #1 - Phase I & II – Jackson Drive and Cedar Creek Road 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 A thorough understanding and written outline of the proposed phasing as it relates to 
infrastructure, site excavation, grading, stormwater management during construction, 
and erosion control measures is needed. 

 Developer should provide an established trucking route for the development. 
Consideration should be given to the proposed roadway improvements to Jackson Dr. 
and Cedar Creek Rd. and the impacts of heavy trucks on the new pavement. 

 
 Public Works/Engineering 

 
 The water loop for phase 1 will be made possible by connecting the 16-inch water 

main under the railroad tracks. 
 Since, the Village is reimbursing Bielinski Homes for the reconstruction of Cedar Creek 

Road and Jackson Drive, the improvements will be completed during phase one. 
 A final review will be completed for the utility layout prior to requesting DNR 

approval.  
 

 Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 

 Fire Department 
 

Sec. 18-113. - Spacing of fire hydrants on public streets. 
Fire hydrants on public streets shall conform to the following placement requirements:  

 Hydrants on single-family zoned residential streets shall be spaced no more than 500 
feet apart.  

 Hydrants on multifamily, business, commercial and industrial zoned streets shall be 
spaced no more than 250 feet apart.  

 Hydrants spacing on streets zoned PUD shall be determined by the fire chief or 
authorized representative using the spacing requirements of either subsection (1) or 
(2) of this section, as appropriate.  

 
 Administrative/Planning 

 
 Recommend Phase I B be included in Phase I. 

 



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – February 28, 2019 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
2. Planned Unit Development - JYM Investments LLC – Tenant Buildings Storage 

Units – Stonebrook Drive 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 DNR wetland mapping indicates areas proposed to be filled are delineated as  
Wetlands. While it is possible that the proposed fill area would meet the definition of  
an “artificial wetland area” the owner would have to demonstrate to the DNR that 
the area qualifies for an Artificial Wetland Exemption. 

 Absent the above written exemption, all DNR permits would be required prior to 
issuance of Village permits. 

 Inspection staff have had a preliminary conversation with the property owner 
regarding proposed erosion control methods to be implemented during and after the 
filling process. 

 
 Public Works/Engineering 

 
 The area where the garages are being proposed is a low wet area of the property.  The 

Developer is required to have DNR approval if necessary in order to fill the low wet area.  

 The proposed garages shall be rented only by apartment residents associated with the JJ 
Merkel Development.     

 Police Department 
 

 Chief Swaney review the request to burn the brush. 
 

 Fire Department 
 

 Driveway should be wide enough for a fire engine to drive around. 
 Burning of brush is not allowed in the Village due to policies and procedures. 

 
 Administrative/Planning 

 
 Mitigation of the wetland areas needs to be delineated. 

 
 
3. Conditional Use Permit – Renee Kaiser – Three Dogs – Main Street  
 

Building Inspection 
 

 No comments. 
 



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – February 28, 2019 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 Public Works/Engineering 
 

 The location and size of the property would provide acceptable reason for the Village to 
approve the third dog.  Recommend approval. 

 Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 

 Fire Department 
 

 No comments. 
 

 Administrative/Planning 
 

 The location and size of the parcel are conducive to allowing three dogs. 
 
 
4. Planned Unit Development – Final Plat – Cobblestone Builders  
 

Building Inspection 
 

 No Comments. 
 

 Public Works/Engineering 
 

 The Village has approved the preliminary plat for the development, and there are no 
changes, so the Village is recommended to approve the final plat. 

 Police Department 
 

 No Comments. 
 

 Fire Department 
 

 Design and setback’s look good.  
 Fire hydrant on the north side of subdivision needs to be moved as it is right next to 

an electrical box! 
 Not sure why a hydrant was not put in the middle of the east side. I will have to 

measure it to make sure it meets Village code. 



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – February 28, 2019 

Page 4 of 4 
 

  
 

 Administrative/Planning 
 

 Recommend Approval. 
 
 


